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The property on which the circa 1865 dwelling known as Hunningdon stands was owned by the Mays family from 

1865 until 1964. The farm complex is situated in Sparks near Piney Hill, between the towns of Philopolis and Hereford, all 

of which are 19th century towns located near the Northern Central Railroad. The house is set in the midst of iron ores, 

quarries, and farmland in district eight. The dwelling is fashionably detailed in the Italianate style of architecture with 

transitional elements tying it to the Second Empire style. Along with its historic outbuildings, Hunningdon stands as a 

prominent example of a rural agricultural farm. 

The three-story building is constructed of brick coursed in a stretcher bond pattern on the facade and a five-course 

American bond pattern on the remaining elevations. The main block rests on an uncoursed fieldstone foundation and has a 

mansard roof clad in asphalt shingles with three rows in an ornamental fishscale pattern. The strict symmetrical facade 

features an enclosed entry vestibule that was not original to the house. A two-story brick ell is attached to the main block to 

form the present L-shaped plan. A bracketed ogee molded wood cornice with acorn drops and unadorned frieze envelops 

the building with returns on the gabled end of the ell. Additionally, a one-story gabled entry addition was attached to the 

rear elevation of the ell and a greenhouse with an enclosed plexiglass porch was added to the west elevation. Three interior 

end chimneys exist in the building, two of which have corbeled caps, while the other was rebuilt with a metal cap. A 

central interior corbeled brick chimney also exists in the ell. A new chimney with a metal cap was added to the rear 

addition. The house is located in a rural area on the east side of York Road and includes approximately twelve acres of 

farmland surrounded by rolling hills with four historic outbuildings on the property to the east of the main house. These 

include a German bank barn, springhouse and smokehouse built contemporarily with the dwelling, a circa 1900 hay barn, 

and a foundation site of an original carriage house. Additionally there are non-contributing buildings, which include a 

caretaker's house, two garages, a carport, pool, and a shed. 
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name Joanne H. Hessey 
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Condition 

excellent deteriorated 
X good ruins 

fair altered 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

Constructed circa 1865, the five-bay wide Italianate and Second Empire transitional style dwelling at 16129 
York Road is three stories in height. The building is constructed of brick coursed in a stretcher bond pattern on 
the facade and a five-course American bond pattern on the remaining elevations. The main block rests on an 
uncoursed fieldstone foundation and has a mansard roof clad in asphalt shingles with three rows in an 
ornamental fishscale pattern. The strict symmetrical facade features an enclosed entry vestibule that was not 
original to the house. A two-story brick ell is attached to the main block to form the present L-shaped plan. A 
bracketed ogee molded wood cornice with acorn drops and unadorned frieze envelops the building with returns 
on the gabled end of the ell. Additionally, a one-story gabled entry addition was attached to the rear elevation 
of the ell and a greenhouse with an enclosed Plexiglas porch was added to the west elevation. Three interior 
end chimneys exist in the building, two of which have corbeled caps, while the other was rebuilt with a metal 
cap. A central interior corbeled brick chimney also exists in the ell. A new chimney with a metal cap was 
added to the rear addition. The house is located in a rural area on the east side of York Road and includes 
approximately twelve acres of farmland surrounded by rolling hills with four historic outbuildings on the 
property to the east of the main house. These include a German bank barn, springhouse and smokehouse built 
contemporarily with the dwelling, a circa 1900 hay barn, and a foundation site of an original carriage house. 
Additionally there are non-contributing buildings, which include a caretaker's house, two garages, a carport, 
pool, and a shed. 

EXTERIOR DESCRIPTION 

The primary facade, facing west, measures five bays in width. The central entry has an enclosed vestibule 
constructed in the 1960s by the current owners to replace the original half-hipped roof porch. The flat-roofed 
vestibule is one story and one bay wide. The vestibule has six casement six-light windows acting as transoms 
over eighteen-light windows. A central wood and two-light storm door provides entry. The single-leaf door to 
the main block is Italianate in style, particularly evidenced by the four wooden panels, of which the upper two 
are arched. A three-light transom and two-light over panel sidelights finish the decorative detailing of the main 
entry. Additionally, the wooden framed vestibule has a dentiled wood cornice, which compliments that of the 
original building. Flanking the entry to each side on the first story are two elongated 2/4 sliphead windows 
where the bottom rails are raised upward through the head of the frame into the wall. The second story has five 
2/2 wooden windows. All of the windows on the facade have marble lug lintels and sills. In addition, there are 
three gabled dormers in the mansard roof, which have square-edged wood surrounds and wood pediments with 
scroll-sawn detailing. The central dormer contains two thin paired 2/2 windows flanked by single 2/2 dormers. 
On the south end of the facade, a two-story wood frame and Plexiglas greenhouse was added with a single-leaf 
one-light wood door. 

The south elevation of the main block has two gabled dormers in the mansard roof, which have square-edged 
wood surrounds and wood pediments with scroll-sawn detailing. The windows are 2/2- wood sash. A two-
story half-gambrel-shaped sunroom on a brick veneer foundation has been attached to the dwelling with a one-
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story glass enclosed porch with a rounded corner attached to that. The ell projects from the rear of the main 
block and a one-story flat-roofed stretcher bond brick addition to the kitchen on an uncoursed stone foundation 
is visible on the south elevation. It has two paired 2/2 windows with parged concrete sills. The second story of 
the ell contains three 2/2 windows with marble lug lintels and sills. A single-leaf wood paneled door with 9-
lights and a marble lug lintel leads to the kitchen addition roof. 

The rear of the building, or east elevation, has a one-story enclosed Plexiglas and wood post porch that runs the 
length of the main block to the ell and the kitchen addition. The first story, visible through the porch, contains 
two 2/2 windows with marble lug lintels and sills. The second story of the main block has one window of 
similar fashion. There are two gabled dormers in the mansard roof, which have square-edged wood surrounds 
and wood pediments with scroll-sawn detailing. The windows are 2/2. An inset three-light window to the 
basement is also present, with a wood surround and marble lug lintel. The gabled ell has a new off-center 
louvered vent in the gable peak and a first story 2/2 windows with a marble lug lintel and sill. The first story of 
the ell also has a rear gable one-story addition with a later extension of the gable roof that has an overhang and 
German weatherboard siding in the gable end. Part of the original gabled addition remains at the juncture with 
the main block and is slightly raised from the newer extension. Weatherboard siding has been added to the 
gable end. 

The north elevation, which includes a solid wall plane of the main block and ell, is symmetrically fenestrated. 
The first and second stories each contain six 2/2 windows with marble lug lintels and sills. Additionally, there 
are three 3-light windows with marble lug lintels located in the foundation. There are also two gabled dormers 
in the mansard roof of the main block, which have square-edged wood surrounds and wood pediments with 
scroll-sawn detailing and 2/2 lights. 

INTERIOR DESCRIPTION 

The L-shaped house is composed of a main block and ell, which features a center hall three-room plan. This 
includes a parlor on the southwest, a parlor to the northwest, and a dining room to the northeast, which extends 
into the ell. The main block interior walls are brick with a plaster finish. All of the doors were originally 
grained with a deep brown color. The ell contained the original kitchen, which has since been extended. 

The hollow newel stair retains its original configuration and is centrally located in the main part of the house. 
Detailing includes an octagonal carved newel post, a carved gripper rail, and turned balusters. The stair also has 
an open stringer with scroll-sawn brackets. There is a paneled wood door to the exterior of the main block at 
each end of the hall, as well as a four-paneled door to the dining room. Wooden four-paneled doors with 
molded casings and porcelain knobs lead to the two parlors. The center hall also has ten-inch beaded cap 
baseboards and three-and-a-half to four-inch floorboards. 
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The southwest parlor now functions as a library. Detailing includes a painted plaster ceiling, ten-inch wood 
baseboards with beaded caps, plaster on brick walls with paint and wallpaper, and molded wood window and 
door casements. Additionally, the casings on the inside wall of the facade further accentuate the sliphead 
windows. A new three-light double leaf door with a three-light transom leading to the rear porch has replaced 
an original window. The parlor also contains a fireplace on the exterior end wall. The slate mantel has been 
grained to appear as marble and has a rounded opening with a keystone and corner panels. An ogee molded 
chair rail is a later addition to the room. 

Across the central hall to the north is a second formal parlor. Detailing includes a painted plaster ceiling, ten-
inch wood baseboards with beaded caps, plaster on brick walls with paint and wallpaper, and molded wood 
window and door casements. Additionally, the casings on the inside wall of the facade further accentuate the 
sliphead windows. The end wall has a marbleized slate fireplace mantel with geometric and Greek key 
patterning. A large gilded mirror with an off-center crown is fastened to the wall above the mantelpiece. A 
large, almost full room length arched entry with a molded wood surround, defines the boundary between the 
parlor and dining room. The doors have been removed. 

The dining room, which includes a portion of the main block and the ell, includes detailing such as a painted 
plaster ceiling, ten-inch wood baseboards with beaded caps, plaster on brick walls with paint and wallpaper, and 
molded wood window and door casements. Three four-panel wood doors with porcelain knobs and lock boxes 
are present. One entry originally lead to the exterior, but now connects to the Plexiglas porch, a second leads to 
the kitchen portion of the ell, another reaches the enclosed stair in the ell, and the final door leads to the central 
hall. 

The rear portion of the ell functions in its original capacity as a kitchen, but was significantly altered in the 
1960s. The south wall was extended six to eight feet. New windows were added, but were in keeping with the 
style of the originals. Parquet flooring, cherry cabinets, and a new mantel with a rounded wood shelf and 
Tuscan pilasters were also alterations made to the original kitchen space. The hearth was also raised and soldier 
bricks were used for the surround. Access to the basement was originally through the kitchen, but was moved 
to the rear gable addition. A pantry was added under the enclosed stair leading to the second story. 

The basement, accessed from the rear addition to the kitchen, reveals a stone back to the kitchen fireplace, a 
brick jack arch and stone foundation walls, which are present under the main block except for the southwest 
parlor. The basement has a poured concrete floor and beams, which are half-unmilled and half hand-hewn, as 
well as completely unmilled log beams. The nails present are machine-cut. 

The second floor, which includes two bedrooms and a bath includes wood floors measuring three-and-a-half to 
five inches in width and molded wood door and window surrounds in keeping with the main floor detailing. 
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Originally the space over the dining room was used as the servants quarters and a rear stair may have existed, 
leading to the attic as evidenced by a scar in the wood floors. The ell portion houses a sitting room. 

The attic space was finished into livable space, as evidenced from the exterior by the mansard roof and dormers. 
The attic portion of the ell was not accessible for survey. 

OUTBUILDINGS 

There are numerous outbuildings associated with the property, located to the east of the dwelling. Historically 
associated with the house as it existed in the 1850s is a German bank bam, a springhouse, a smokehouse, and 
the foundation of a carriage house. A hay bam was erected circa 1900. Additionally, there are non-contributing 
buildings, which include a caretaker's house, two garages, and a carport. A shed has also been built on the 
remaining foundation of a granary. There is also a pool. 

The two-and-a-half story, two-bay German bank bam was built circa 1850 on an uncoursed stone foundation. 
The bam has a gabled roof, now clad in corrugated metal, and has board and batten vertical wood siding. Some 
windows and doors have been replaced. Cattle were originally house in the ground level, which has vertical 
board doors with iron strap hinges. The interior of the bam reveals hand-hewn and unmilled rafters with 
mortis-and-tenon joints. Eleven-inch floorboards and hand-wrought nails with handmade square heads are also 
present. 

The circa 1850s one-and-a-half story and one bay wide springhouse, built into the hill, was constructed of 
uncoursed stone. The building now functions as a billiard room, resulting in numerous alterations. These 
alterations included the removal of an icehouse portion of the building, a new double leaf wood door with a 
retained wood lintel, an asphalt-shingled roof, the addition of three skylights and a reconstructed wood cornice. 
An off-center gabled entry with German siding was added to the east elevation. 

Built circa 1900, a two-story, three bay hay bam stands to the southeast of the German bank bam. Constructed 
of vertical board siding, the bam has a corrugated metal roof and a one-story, three-bay shed porch supported by 
wood posts. 

A smokehouse was also constructed about the same time as the main house. It is situated just to the north of the 
rear addition. The one bay, one story building is built of brick with a six-course American bond pattern. The 
smokehouse rests on an uncoursed stone foundation. The gable front roof is clad in asphalt shingles and has a 
small vertical board window in the gable end. There is a single-leaf wood three-panel and four-light door with a 
flush wood lug lintel. 
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The property also has a contributing site, which is the stone foundation of a carriage house. 

Noncontributing outbuildings include a 1990s one-bay, one-story vertical board shed, which was built on an 
historic stone granary foundation, which was demolished in the 1990s. The gable front shed has an asphalt 
shingled roof. A two-story, three-bay caretaker's cottage was built in the 1980s. The side-gabled dwelling was 
constructed of wood German siding on a poured concrete foundation and has a steeply pitched asphalt shingled 
roof. In addition, the cottage has a one-story, three-bay shed roofed porch supported by square wood posts. 
Garages were built to the north of the rear addition to the dwelling and the second was constructed to the 
northeast of the caretaker's house. The gable-fronted garages were built in the 1980s and have wood German 
siding, poured concrete foundations, asphalt shingles and wood paneled roll-up doors. To the west of the main 
dwelling garage, there stands a 1970s wood post carport. The one-story, one-bay structure has a gable-front 
asphalt shingled roof and German wood siding in the gable end. 
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Construction dates ca. 1865 
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_ engineering 
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military 
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Maryland Register 

science 
_ social history 
_ transportation 

other: 
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Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

The property on which the circa 1865 dwelling known as Hunningdon stands was owned by the Mays family 
from 1865 until 1964. It is located on York Road, the major thoroughfare connecting Baltimore to York, 
Pennsylvania. The farm complex is situated in Sparks near Piney Hill, between the towns of Philopolis and 
Hereford, all of which are 19' century towns located near the Northern Central Railroad. Located at the 
northern edge of Election District Eight, the house is set in the midst of iron ores, quarries, and farmland. The 
dwelling is fashionably detailed in the Italianate style of architecture with transitional elements tying it to the 
Second Empire style. 

HISTORY 

Although the exact date of construction for the dwelling has not been determined, deeds, tax records, and 
stylistic embellishments support a circa 1865 date. Despite the fact that the 1850 Map of the City and County oj 
Baltimore Maryland by J.C. Sidney indicates that J. Merryman occupied a dwelling that appears to be in the 
same location as Hunningdon, it is not believed to be the same house. Deed research indicates that John P. 
Mays purchased the property in two separate transactions dating from 1865 and 1874. In 1865, Mays purchased 
ninety-one acres from John and Ann E. Knight. The tract of land was known as Bachelor's Good Luck and was 
bought for $927.50. An adjoining twenty-two-and-a-half acres were purchased in 1874 for $1,100 from Joshua 
M. and Mary Jane Gorsuch and Frank and Eleanor Cole. Due to the higher cost for a smaller amount of 
acreage, it is believed that the house was located on this second parcel of land. This tract of land had 
historically been part of Bachelor's Good Luck and The Reserve, both of which had been owned by the 
prosperous Baltimore County Merryman family. In 1876, tax ledgers record that the dwelling belonging to 
John P. Mays was worth $1,500.' It is interesting to note that the 1877 Hopkins atlas indicates that there was no 
dwelling in this vicinity. This absence of a dwelling may be due to the fact that the house lies on the dividing 
line between the Seventh and Eighth Election Districts, and therefore, may have been overshadowed by the 
division of maps. 

Baltimore County Historic Buildings Survey List. Baltimore County Office of Planning, Towson, Maryland. 
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Prior to his purchase of Hunningdon, John P. Mays was a resident of the Seventh District, residing just north of 
Hereford. At that time, he was a large landowner with a prosperous dairy farm. Upon moving south to the 
Piney Hill region of Baltimore County, Mays once again planned to embark in the dairy farm business. 
According to an 1885 article in the Baltimore County Union, the farm showed " a decided improvement, and 
now will produce crops equal to those of his enterprising neighbors. The buildings are attractive and 
conveniently built. The buildings and fences are all in first-class condition, and everything on the place has a 
neat appearance." The same newspaper article indicated that the farm included a brick dwelling house with a 
Mansard roof and a two-story rear ell, a large bank barn, a corn house and wagon shed, a hog house, a granary, 
and a dairy with a workshop and tool-house. The bank barn provided space for ten horses and thirty-five cows, 
including twenty head of Alderney and Ayrshire cattle. In 1885, Mays planned to once again begin his dairy 
farm operations, shipping milk from the Glencoe Station on the Northern Central Railroad, located to the 
southeast of the dwelling.3 

As a result of his strong interest in agricultural practices, Mays was a director of the Agricultural Society of 
Baltimore County, as well as a prominent member of the Glencoe Grange. The Agricultural Society was 
originally formed in 1841. However, it stopped meeting in 1861 and was not reorganized until December 1878. 
According to its charter, the object of the organization was "to promote, protect, and improve agriculture in all 
branches, and to hold fairs and exhibitions." The organization was a joint stock association with 2,000 shares 
and a $10,000 capital investment. The society was located on a thirty-seven acre tract in Timonium and the 
grounds included a racetrack, exhibition buildings, stables, and pens.5 

The property on which Hunningdon is situated is on the east side of York Road, a few miles to the west of the 
Northern Central Railroad. It is located at the northernmost edge of the eighth district, which was one of the 
largest and most populated regions of the county in the latter part of the 19th century. In 1877, it was considered 
the fourth largest district in the county and by 1881, it had grown to the third largest district with 62.86 square 
miles and a population of 6,000. The area historically consisted of rolling hills, traversed by major 
transportation corridors. Although the district supported arable fields for plantings and dairy production, it was 
known for its iron ores, marble and limestone quarries, paper factories, and saw, grist and cotton mills. 

Although the dwelling is located in the town of Piney Hill, little is known about this small village. Appearing 
on maps as early as 1850, Piney Hill is located just south of Hereford on York Road. It is situated at the 
northernmost point in the Eighth District, near Piney Run, the site of the iron ore beds for which the district is 

2 Baltimore County Union, January 31, 1885. Located in the Vertical Files at the Baltimore County Office of Planning, Towson, 
Maryland. 

Baltimore County Union, January 31,1885. 
4 J. Thomas Scharf, History of Baltimore City and County From the Earliest Period to the Present Day: Including Biographical 
Sketches of Their Representative Men, (Philadelphia, PA: Louis H. Everts, 1881), p. 818. 
5 Scharf, p. 818. 
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well known. Hereford and Philopolis are 19 -century towns that are less than twenty-five miles north of 
Baltimore City. Situated between the York Road and the Northern Central Railroad, Hereford was home to 300 
inhabitants in 1881 and at that time, was the center of a rich agricultural region. Philopolis, whose population in 
1881 was 100, is bisected by the York Turnpike and sits one mile to the west of the Northern Central Railroad. 
It was the home of Milton Academy and the headquarters of the Glencoe Grange, of which John P. Mays was a 
member. The close proximity of Hereford and Philopolis to York Road and the railroad rendered the small 
towns as centers of trade. 

The imposing three-story masonry dwelling is representative of two architectural styles that were popular 
during the second half of the 19th century. It appears to be illustrative of the transitional phase between the 
Italianate style and the Second Empire style of architecture. Characteristic of the Italianate style are the wide 
eaves with an ornate bracketed cornice and elongated window openings. The Italianate style of architecture was 
begun in England as part of the Picturesque movement, a reaction to the formal classical ideals in art and 
architecture. It first appeared in the United States during the 1830s and was popularized in the 1840s and 1850s 
by the pattern books of Andrew Jackson Downing. Most examples in the United States date from 1855 to 
1880.6 Although the house has features of the Italianate style of architecture, it also has identifying 
characteristics of the Second Empire style. In particular, Hunningdon is capped by a Mansard roof with a 
molded cornice above and below the lower roof slope, decorative roof shingles, dormers, and bracketed eaves. 
The Second Empire style of architecture was most popularly used on residences between 1860 and 1880. The 
style first appeared in France during the reign of Napoleon III (1852-1870) and was applied to many public 
buildings in America following the Civil War. Both the Italianate and Second Empire style began to decline in 
popularity following the financial panic of 1873 and the subsequent economic depression.7 An historic German 
bank barn, smokehouse, hay barn, and springhouse all surrounded by sloping farmland edged with mature trees 
and agricultural fields, support the imposing dwelling. 

The house remained under the ownership of John P. Mays until his death in 1896, when it was willed to seven 
of his descendants. Hunningdon remained in their possession for twenty years, being conveyed in 1916 to 
grandson John P. Mays. During the 20th century, the property, including the main dwelling and agricultural 
outbuildings, was transferred numerous times to members of the Mays and related Cromwell family. The 
property remained in the Cromwell family until 1964, when following two transactions was transferred to 
Joanne H. Hessey, the current owner. 

Chain of Title: 

Part 1: 

6 Virginia and Lee McAlester, A Field Guide to American Architecture, (New York, NY: Alfred A. Knopf, 1988), pp. 212-214. 
7 McAlester, pp. 241-242. 
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October 1, 1865: 

February 10, 1874: 

Richard S. Merryman to Joshua M. Gorsuch 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 46 Folio 315 

Joshua M. Gorsuch and Mary Jane Gorsuch, wife, Frank Cole and Eleanor Cole, wife, to John P. Mays 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 89 Folio 120 

Part 2: 

November 14, 1865: John Knight and Ann E. Knight, wife, to John P. Mays 
Land records of Baltimore County 
Liber 48 Folio 412 

V* All Parts: 

June 16, 1896: John P. Mays(grandfather) willed to Elizabeth A. Mays, William A. Mays, Sterling A. Mays, G. Mellor 
Mays, Marion E. Mays, Lorretta S. Mays, and Josephine E. Mays 
Will Records of Baltimore County 
Liber BNA 10 Folio 48 

March 4, 1916: 

November 3, 1937: 

June 5, 1963: 

Elizabeth A. Mays, William A. Mays, Sterling A. Mays, G. Mellor Mays, Marion E. Mays, Lorretta S. Mays, 
and Josephine E. Mays to John P. Mays (grandson) 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 456 Folio 574 

John Mays, little, Attorney, to Cameron S. Cromwell, Sr. and Lorretta M. Cromwell, wife 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber CWB 1018 Folio 122 

Elizabeth Mays, second wife and widow of Cameron S. Cromwell, Sr., to Cameron S. Cromwell, Jr. 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 4152 Folio 525 

June 5, 1963: Cameron S. Cromwell, Jr. and Patricia T. Cromwell, wife, to White Villa Corporation 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 4152 Folio 535 

c June 5, 1963: White Villa Corporation to Cameron S. Cromwell and Patricia T. Cromwell, wife 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber RRG 4152 Folio 537 
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September 15, 1964: Cameron Stirling Cromwell and Patricia Tillinghast Cromwell to Stoneleigh Enterprises 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 4366 Folio 63 

October 1, 1964: Stoneleigh Enterprises to Joanne H. Hessey 
Land Records of Baltimore County 
Liber 4369 Folio 390 
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10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 12.1694 Acres 
Acreage of historical setting 
Quadrangle name Hereford Quadrangle scale: 1:24,000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

Hunningdon is located at 16129 York Road near Piney Hill in Baltimore County, Maryland as noted on Tax Map 28, Parcel 216. 
The house has been historically associated with this parcel since its construction circa 1865. 

11. Form Prepared by 
name/title L. V. Trieschmann, R. J. Weidlich, and J. J. Bunting, Architectural Historians 

organization EHT Traceries, Inc. date 8 October 2000 

street & number 11215th Street NW telephone 202.393.1199 

city or town Washington state DC 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature 
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCD/DHCP 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023 
410-514-7600 

























































































BA-535 HUNNINGDON - 1850-1875 - 16129 York Road, east side, between 
Indian Spring Court and Corbett Road, Sparks vicinity. Brick 
house of three stories, including Mansard level. Victorian 
style, five bays wide, central entrance, no porch. Long back 
building in brick with gable roof. House is missing from 
three atlases, but was long in the Mays family, probably the 
"improvements" charged to John P. Mays in 1876 tax ledger and 
to George A. Mays in 1896, when the dwelling was worth 
$1500. The 1918 tax ledger showed John P. Meays (sic) with a 
dwelling 55 x 16 and 26 x 22, worth $3563. I.L. Webb, per 
"House Numbers". 




